
United Nations fi1l8T COMMIIm, 732nd 
GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

NINTH SESSION 
Official Records • 

MEETING 

Monday, 29 November 1954, 
at 10.30 a.m. 

CONTENTS 

Page 

Agenda item 61: 
The question of \Vest I ri;-tn (\Vest New Guinea) 

(continued) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 429 

ChairlJUUI.: Mr. Francisco URRUTIA (Colombia). 

AGENDA ITEM 61 

The question of West Irian (West New Guinea) 
(A/2694, A/C.l/L.l09) (continued) 

1. Mr. BRILEJ (Yugoslavia) said that his delega
tion had supported the request of Indonesia that the 
question of West Irian should be placed on the agenda 
of the Assembly, because it believed that each coun
try should be given the opportunity to bring its prob
lems involving relations with other countries before 
the Uniterl Nations. His delegation also hoped that the 
General Assembly might, by considering the problem, 
~ontribute tO\vards the lessening of tension between 
the two parties. Yugoslavia maintained very friendly 
r·elations both with the Netherlands and with the I\.e-
1ublic of Indonesia, and for that reason it greatly 
regretted that the dispute over West New Guinea had 
1ssumed such a serious character. 

~. After a study of the history of the question, and 
1articularly of the statements made by the represent
ttives of Indonesia and the Netherlands, the Yugo
;lav delegation had come to a number of conclusions. 
[,'irst, the qut>stion of the future status of West New 
.:;uinea had been referred to the Assembly as a ques
ion under dispute in the Charter of transfer of sov
~reignty (S/1417/Adcl.1): that was clearly borne out 
)y article 2 (a) of that charter. Secondly, both parties 
1ad undertaken the obligation to negotiate in order to 
letennine the future status of West New Guinea, as 
,vas clear from the final paragraph of article 2 of the 
;ame Charter. Thirdly, the two parties had entered 
1pon the practical implementation of the obligations 
tssumed under the Charter of transfer of sovereignty, 
'fhich had come into force on 27 December 1949, and 
1ad started negotiations with a view to solving the 
Jroblem of West New Guinea. For that purpose con
·erences between the two parties had been held at 
·akarta in April 1950, at The Hague in December 1950, 
md again at The Hague from December 1951 to 
:;-ebruary 1952. Fourthly, during those conferences the 
wo parties had submitted their respective proposals 
·or the solution of the probl~:m of West New Guinea. 

:. Thost: facts showed that the two parties had shown 
heir good will and readiness to come to a settlement 
m the question. The Yugoslav delegation therefore 
egretted that since then a tendency towards the taking 
1f categoric stands had developed. That tendency, in 

429 

New York 

fact, amounted to a retrogression and to a departure 
from the obligations which had been mutually agreed to. 

4. The best course for the General Assembly to adopt 
in the present case would be to try to bring about a 
continuation of the negotiations between the two par
ties. Such negotiations constituted the most appropriate 
method for the peaceful solution of the question. Fur
thermore, the two parties should show greater patience 
and willingness to agree in the course of the negotia
tions, because if sufficient perseverance and good will 
were shown a solution should not be difficult to find. 
In that respect, Mr. Brilej could cite the examples of 
the settlement of the Suez Canal dispute and the solu
tion of the question of Trieste. 

5. Mr. BERNARDES (Brazil) said that his delega
tion was convinced that the stands taken by the delega
tions of the Netherlands and Indonesia on the question 
of \Vest Guinea were inspired by the highest moti n:s. 
In submitting their cases, the two delegations wen: 
defending their legitimate rights and were not prompted 
by desires of conquest or by ambitions of a political 
nature. Unfortunately, however, the question of \Vest 
New Guinea had raised a wave of emotional unrest, 
and according to Press reports feelings were running 
high, especially in the countries principally concerned. 

6. The question of West New Guinea must be con
sidered from three different aspects: first, the welfare 
of the people of West New Guinea in the light of 
Chapter XI of the Charter; secondly, the legal aspect. 
which could be described as the interpretation of the 
agreement reached between the Netherlands and Indo
nesia at the Round Table Conference at The Hague; 
and thirdly, the political aspect, which concerned the 
repercussions and consequences that the present i ssuc 
might have in that part of Asia and in the over-all 
political picture of the world. 

7. The first of the three aspects was of the highest 
importance. While some delegations had expressed 
doubts as to the competence of the United Nations 
to deal with the question, none had questioned its duty 
towards the people of West New Guinea. The repre
sentatives of the Netherlands and Indonesia had also 
repeatedly stated that their main concern was the wel
fare and advancement of the inhabitants of the terri
tory of West New Guinea. 

8. Another fact which had not been contested so far 
was that the people of West New Guinea had not yet 
achieved the necessary degree of political and educa
tional development which would enable them to decide 
their own future. In that respect, the Brazilian delega
tion agreed with the representative of Peru. who had 
questioned (730th meeting) the advisability of the 
United Nations deciding on questions of transfer of 
sovereignty over a territory whose inhabit:tnts ,,·en· 
not yet capable of expressing their own will freeh,'. 

9. The Brazilian delegation accepted the statement 
of the representative of Indonesia (726th meeting) on 

A/C.1jSR.732 



430 General Assembly - Ninth session - First Committee 

the close links between Indonesia and the territory of 
West New Guinea. It was even inclined to believe that 
if the people of vVest New Guinea were capable of 
choosing their own political status, integration into the 
Indonesian Republic might appear in their eyes as a 
highly desirable course of action to be taken. How
ever, in important matters such as the present decisions 
could not be taken merely on the basis of assumptions. 
The General Assembly must come to a decision on the 
basis of indisputable evidence. The United Nations 
must bring about the political development of the inhab
itants of West New Guinea in order to enable them to 
express their will on their future political status. That 
could be done under the provisions of Chapter XI of 
the Charter. 

10. Brazil welcomed the declaration of the Nether
lands Government that it would, at the appropriate 
time, give the inhabitants of West New Guinea the 
opportunity to determine their own future. It would, 
however, suggest that that declaration should be com
pleted by some form of guarantee to the United N a
tions that the Organization would be able to supervise 
the implementation of that promise. The Netherlands 
had alr~ady been submitting information concerning 
the tern tory of West New Guinea in accordance with 
Article 73 e of the Charter, and it would be to its 
advantage if it could also state that, from now on and 
until the people of West New Guinea reached a stage 
of mature political advancement, it would voluntarily 
report. to the Secretary-General on the steps taken to 
fulfil 1ts pledge, and that those reports could be dis
cussed by the United Nations. Such a declaration on 
the part of the Netherlands Government would weigh 
heavily with the Brazilian delegation when casting its 
vote on the draft resolution before the Committee. 

11. Turning to the legal aspect of the question, Mr. 
Bernardes said that it was clear that the Charter of 
transfer of sovereignty (S/1417 /Add.l) had left open 
the question of the political status of West New Gui
nea. ~ t ~ad been agreed between the two parties that 
negohatwns on the future of West New Guinea should 
be de~id.ed by further negotiations. The story of those 
negohatwns was a sad one. While the Government of 
the Netherlands had proposed that the sovereignty over 
\Vest New Guinea should be vested in the Netherlands
r ndoncsian Union, the Indonesian Government had in
sisted that the sovereignty should be handed over to 
the Republic of T ndonesia. As had been stated in a 
report of the United Nations Commission for Indo
nesia ( S /2087), the Government of Indonesia had been 
prepared to resume negotiations only if it were under
<;(ood in advance that sovereignty over West New Gui
nea would be transferred to Indonesia. The delegation 
of the Nether lands maintained, however, and with 
jus~ification, that that position on the part of the Indo
nesian Gm·ernment rendered those negotiations useless. 

12. ThC' Brazilian delegation would favour the re
~~ll~1ption of. negotiations, but with no preliminary con
Oitlons. \Vh!lc thosC' negotiations could be carried on 
through international conferC'nces, it would be better if 
ordinary diplomatic channels were used for the pur
pose. 

13. Dealing with thC' political aspect of the question, 
tllC' representative of Brazil recalled that Indonesia, 
when requested by the Government of the Netherlands 
to seek a decision from the International Court of 
Justice on the legal aspect of the problem, had rejected 
a proposal on the ground that it considered the prob-

!em to be of a political nature. In his statement before 
the First Committee, the representative of Indonesia 
had also emphasized the serious political consequences 
that might arise if no solution were found in the imme
diate future to the question of vVest New Guinea. The 
Brazilian delegation, however, had full confidence that 
the Government of Indonesia would always seek a 
peaceful solution to the question and would refrain 
from any action which might lead to a breach of the 
peace. 

14. The Brazilian delegation noted with satisfaction 
the assurances given by the Foreign Minister of Indo
nesia to the effect that Indonesia had no demands on 
other territories such as Portuguese Timor and British 
Borneo. It shared, however, the anxiety expressed by 
the representatives of Australia (727th meeting) and 
New Zealand (730th meeting) over questions of secu
rity should a sudden change of sovereignty occur in 
West New Guinea. No action that could even slightly 
weaken the security of Australia and New Zealand was 
in any way in the best interests of the free world. 
That consideration must also be borne in mind when 
taking a decision on the present question. 

15. Mr. QUIROGA GALDO (Bolivia), after refer
ring to the history of Bolivia's struggle for political 
and economic independence, stated that in the case of 
\iVest Irian his delegation saw a network of economic 
and political interests that wished to prevent the incor
poration of that area in the Republic of Indonesia. The 
Bolivian people had feelings of great friendship for 
the people of Indonesia and admired their struggle 
for freedom. Similarly, the Bolivian and Netherlands 
peoples were linked by a very old and long-standing 
friendship, and also by the memory of the struggle for 
freedom against the common conqueror. In that sense, 
the Bolivians and the Dutch could be regarded as hav
ing been compatriots at a certain time in their history. 

16. It had been stated in the Committee that the people 
of West Irian would gain nothing by being associated 
with the Republic of Indonesia. At least, however, the 
inhabitants of the territory would immediately achieve 
their freedom, and that was a factor which should not 
be overlooked. No doubt the Netherlands Government 
was interested in matters concerning the welfare of th~ 
Papuans. However, the history of colonialism clear!) 
showed that colonialism had one aim in view, namely 
to enrich the strong and to weaken those who wen 
already weak. According to a book entitled Savag1 
Papua: a missionary among cannibals, written b) 
Father Andre Dupeyrat, the Papuans were a peoplt 
who wne still living under conditions of the stone age 
In the face of Father Dupeyrat's account. it would no 
be out of place to inquire what the colonizers ha< 
achieved in New Guinea during one hundred years o 
occupation. 

17. Mr. Quiroga Galdo could not accept the view tha 
the inhabitants of West T rian should not be united witl 
Indonesia because of differences of language, flora anj 
fauna. Those things did not make a nation. As Renal 
had said, a nation was a collective state of soul. In th 
opinion of the Bolivian delegation, the people of We~ 
l rian belonged to T ndonesia hecause they shared th 
same state of soul. 

18. Article 1 of the Charter of transfer of sovereignt 
had transferred complete sovereignty over Indonesia t 
the Republic of the United States of Indonesia. Th< 
transfer had not excluded West New Guinea, an 



732nd meeting - 29 November 1954 431 

trticle 2 of the same charter had provided that the polit
cal status of that territory should be determined 
hroug-h n~gotiations. That was confirmed both by the 
tgreements previously signed between the two coun:tries, 
md by the amendment to the Netherlands Constitution 
1f 1948. stating that the Kingdom of the Netherlands 
:onsisted of the territories of the Netherlands, Indo
lesia, Surinam and the Nether lands Antilles, without 
naking special mention of New Guinea. 

l9. The territorial conflict between Indonesia and the 
\T etherlands could be seen in the light of the principles 
Jf uti possidetis de jure and uti possidetis de facto. 
vVhile Indonesia, basing its claim upon very clear titles, 
ncluding the Charter of transfer of sovereignty, 
.vanted the principle of uti possidetis de jure applied in 
Jrder to recover part of its territory, the Government 
Jf the Nether lands appeared to rely on the principle 
Jf uti possidetis de facto, since, by refusing to continue 
. he negotiations stipulated in the Charter of transfer 
Jf sovereignty, it gave the impression of wanting to 
·emain indefinitely in the territory of \Vest Irian. 

~0. Mr. Quiroga Gafdo agreed with the representative 
1f Ecuador, who had said (73lst meeting) that the 
[ndonesian claim had nothing to do with the question of 
:he revision of treaties. In any case, the revision of 
reaties, when its purpose was to remove injustices, 
;erved to promote harmony between nations. He re
:alled, in that connexion, that articles 5 and 14 of the 
:._"harter of the Organization of American States did 
:10t preclude the revision of treaties by peaceful means. 

21. Referring to the statement of the representative 
1f Australia ( 727th meeting) to the effect that the peo
ple of West New Guinea should not be handed over to 
some other nation, but should be allowed to decide its 
1wn future in accordance with the terms of the Char
ter, Mr. Quiroga Galdo said that neither Australia nor 
[ts predecessor, Germany, had been able to establish the 
necessary conditions under which the people of East 
New Guinea could advance towards self-governmt'nt. 

22. The Bolivian del<'gation bdit'Yt'd that it was just 
lhat \Vest Irian should be rt'tUrnt'd to Indonesia, and 
was convinced that, onc<' tht' Papuans >vert' reunited 
with Indonesia, th<'y would c~ase to bt' th~ rt'presenta
ti\·es of the stone age in the present atomic age. 
23. The Bolivian delegation had been considerably 
surprised by the statement of the Nether lands repre
sentative (726th meeting) that the United Nations 
rould do nothing to change the situation except to aug
ment confusion and stimulate tension. That was a policy 
of negation and was contrary to the Purposes and Prin
ciples of the United Nations Charter. 

24. Mr. Quiroga Galdo stated in conclusion that his 
clelegation considered the draft resolution submitted by 
Indonesia ( A/C.l /L.1 09) to be a moderate one and 
would therefore support it. 
25. Mr. RAMADAN (Egypt) said that his delega
tion could not agree with the position adopted by the 
Nether lands and felt that the arguments of the repre
sentatives of the Netherlands and Australia distorted 
the real nature of the question. Their attitude denoted 
a bias and an intransigeance which seemed to be in
spired by the vestiges of an obsolet~ colonialism. Th~ 
argument that some Powers must be vested with a 
civilizing mission took no account of the fact that that 
mission could be p~rformed as efficiently by other States 
whose geographical position, historical ties and eco
nomic potentialities might confer upon them the same 

prerogative. Indonesia's geographical and historical 
links to West Irian supported thP argument that the 
mission performed by the Netherlands ought to be 
entrusted to Indonesia. No decisive argument had been 
advanced to indicate that Indonesia could not perform 
that mission. The argument about differences of race 
and culture, between \Nest Irian and Indonesia, if it 
had any relevance to the determination of sovereignty, 
would militate against the Nether lands, since its inhab
itants were certainly more dissimilar in origin and race 
from the inhabitants of West Irian than were the Indo
nesians. 

26. ·whereas the attitude of Indonesia was moderate 
and showed its desire to solve the dispute within the 
framework of the United Nations Charter, the Nether
lands had adopted a rigid position as to the competence 
of the United Nations and the Indonesian request for 
a resumption of negotiations . 

27. The question was simple, since it related to a dis
pute arising from the refusal of the Nether lands to 
settle the fate of West Irian within the framework of 
the provisions of the Charter of transfer of sover
eignty. The General Assembly \vas fully competent to 
deal with it in view of the provisions of Article 10, 
Article 11, paragraph 2, and Article 14 of the United 
Nations Charter. That competence was not limited by 
Article 12, paragraph 1, which applied only in specific 
cases where the Security Council was in fact examin
ing a question and considering the advisability of en
forcement measures. The General Assemblv was there
fore fully entitled to recommend that the p~rties should 
negotiate on a question of the type envisaged under 
Article 14 of the Charter. Moreover, articl~ 2 (f) of 
the Charter of transfer of sonrcignty clearly indicated 
that the parties had :stated their agreement on the 
advisability of entering into negotiations to settle the 
dispute between them. 

28. The objt'ction of the Netherlands on the grounds 
that the same charter had specified a one-year period 
was not justified in view of the fact that that provision 
had been included in the charter at the formal request 
of Indonesia, in the hope of arriving at a solution as 
soon as possible. The failure of the negotiations during 
that one-year period could certainly not justify the 
Nether lands unilateral decision to annex \Vest Irian. 
That action constituted a violation of an agreement 
signed under the auspices of the United Nations. 

29. The argument that negotiations could not be con
tinued because the constitutional structure of Indonesia 
had been altered was equally invalid, since the provi
sions of the Chartt'r of transfer of sovereignty had not 
stipulated that the vVest Irian problem must be settled 
within the framework of any specified constitutional 
structure. 

30. The argument concerning the dissolution of the 
Nether lands-Indonesian Union was also unfounded, be
cause the Union had been dissoh·ed by common agree
m~nt and not by any unilateral action on the part of 
Indonesia. Moreover, the question of \Vest Irian had 
always remained outside the framework of the co
operation which the Union had been designed to foster; 
it had been, as it still was, the subject of a dispute 
between the parties. 

31. The fact that an administering Power had sub
stituted de jure sovereignty for de facto sovereignty 
over a territory with regard to which it was bound to 
submit information regularly under the provisions of 



432 General Assembly - Ninth session - First Committee 

Article 73, constituted a violation of the Charter. That 
violation was an additional argument in favour of the 
competence of the Assembly. 
32. Reviewing the provisions of the Charter of trans
fer of sovereignty with respect to New Guinea, and 
the subsequent negotiations, Mr. Ramadan recalled that 
various statements had previously been made by Neth
erlands spokesmen on the subject of Indonesian sover
eignty over the territory. For example, Mr-. van Mook, 
the Netherlands Governor-General, had stated in De
cember 1946 that it was the intention of his Govern
ment to retain New Guinea within the framework of 
the United States of Indonesia. 
33. The dispute was obviously hampering the develop
ment of friendly relations among nations, in the words 
of Article 14 of the Charter, as had been foreseen 
in 1949 bv the Prime Minister of the Netherlands and 
the representative of Indonesia. At the opening of the 
Round Table Conference, the former had declared that 
if the Conference achieved a satisfactory agreement, 
the door would be open to broader co-operation between 
the two peoples, but that if it failed, consequences 
would ensue which would be of profound concern to 
all. The representative of Indonesia had stated in 
December 1949 that it was indispensable to reach 
rapidly a satisfactory solution of the problem of New 
Guinea in order to facilitate the co-operation agreed 
upon by the parties. 

34. By encouraging the resumption of negotiations, 
the General Assembly would effectively contribute to 
the re-establishment of the co-operation jeopardized by 
the dispute. The Assembly could not evade its responsi
bility or ignore its obligation. In view of its devotion 
to its own traditions, the Nether lands could not fail to 
heed such an appeal by the Assembly, and negotiations 
could be resumed. Once the dispute had been settled, 
co-operation would be made possible, and peace and 
security would be strengthened in that part of the 
world. 

35. The Egyptian delegation would vote in favour of 
the Indonesian draft resolution. 

36. Mr. COOKE (Argentina), after stressing the 
links hetween his country and the Nether lands and 
Australia, paid tribute to the peoples of those countries, 
as welle as to the people of Indonesia. 

37. l\fr. Cooke considered that the item under discus
sion ,,·as of a political rather than of a legal ch:uacter, 
<'nd rt'(alled his country's consistent stand against 
colonialism, a stand shared in one form or another by 
all Latin-American countries; that anti-colonialism. 
howeYcT, was an attitude of principle and not a~ 
indiscriminate policy which would prevent the study 
of each case on the basis of the facts. 
38. After listening to the arguments presented dur
ing the discussion, Mr. Cooke still believed that there 
existed a case to be considered, that the General As
St'mbly was fully competent to study it, and that 
the problem should be resolved through peaceful nego
tiations. 

39. A case existed, because article 2 of the Charter 
of transfer of sovereignty clearly stipulated that the 
question of \Vest New Guinea remained in dispute and 
must be resolved through negotiations. 

40. With regard to the competence of the General 
Assembly, it had been argued that Article 2, paragraph 
7, of the United Nations Charter applied in the ma~ter, 

The Argentine delegation believed, howevet, that th{ 
principle of domestic jurisdiction could not apply tc 
colonial territories. The Netherlands could not maintai~ 
that it had absolute sovereignty over the territory in 
c1uestion, because the Charter of transfer recognizee 
that there \Yas a dispute on the subject of New Guinea 
and provided for subsequent negotiations to determim 
its political status. 

41. :Moreover, the argument that Article 2, paragrapr 
7, applied contradicted another argument, advancec 
by the same representatives, to the effect that th~ 
question could not be studied by the Assembly hecaus~ 
the Security Council was seized of it. If the Securit) 
Council was seized of the matter, then the Unite( 
Nations was competent to deal with it. In any case, i1 
had been clearly shown, for example in the case oi 
Palestine, that the fact that the Council was ex?mining 
a general problem did not prevent the Assembly frotT 
examining particular aspects of the same problem. Th( 
Jndonesian question and that of \Vest Irian were twc 
distinct questions. Finally, the mere fact that an itetr 
vias on the Council's agenda could not preyent the 
Assembly from considering it. If every item remaining 
on the agenda of the Council was outside the competencf 
of the Assembly, or if Article 2, paragraph 7, wen 
inYoked on every issue, the General Assembly woulc 
be reduced to the position of the chorus in a Greeli 
tragedy. 
42. The delegation of Argentina believed, then·fore 
that Article 14 of the Charter applied. 

43. As for the various arguments concerning differ
utces between the inhabitants of vVest New Guine3 
~;nd those of Indonesia, Mr. Cooke supported the view' 
which had been expressed on that point by the repre· 
sentatives of Indonesia and India (726th and 728tt 
meetings), and pointed out that in the western hemi· 
sphere there were many examples of diffe~et;It popula· 
tions with different religions and cultures !tvmg peace· 
tully side by side. Moreover, differences of race _sho~lc 
not be discussed in a boclv devoted to the eracltcattar 
of discrimination on the ·basis of race, language, 01 

any other distinction. In any case, there was not < 
greater affinity between the inhabitants of the Nether 
lands and those of vVest New Guinea than betweer 
the latter ami the inhabitants of the rest of the islan& 
comprising Indonesia. 
44. The argummt that the continuation of Netherland~ 
administration would be justified by the need for en 
courag-ing and assisting the self-deten"?inatton_ of th• 
people of \Vest New Guinea was an nnpresstve one 
but the question of self-determination was not the onl~ 
factor to be taken into account in the problem uncle 
discussion. That problem resulted from the actions o 
more powerful nations in previous centuries, and it 
that connexion Mr. Cooke wondered what p<~rt th' 
c;rgument about self-determination played in the cas' 
of the Malvinas, or of Gibraltar. 
'-15. Self-determination should not be invoked in orde 
to maintain colonialism. Pointing out that many year 
would be required before the peopks in the inte~ior o 
\Vest New Guinea could be in a posit ton to dectde 01 

their own future, Mr. Cooke recalled that the Nether 
lands had not carried out a plebiscite in Indonesi 
before the transfer of sovereignty to the Indonesiam 
In regions where culture was still very backward, th 
educated minority was the judge, and there was n 
doubt that it expressed the view of the majority. 



732nd meeting - 29 November 1954 433 

6. The point of view of the representative of Aus
·alia. who had referred to the significance of West 
r ew Guinea in the defence of Australia, was important, 
ut that territory was also important to the defence 
nd security of Indonesia. It was surely more logical 
J suppose that, in the event of agression, collective 
efence would be more effective if West New Guinea 
rne dependent on a parent State that was close by 
:tther than on one that was thousands of miles away. 

7. In conclusion, pointing out that the Netherlands 
ncl T ndonesia had agreed to negotiate, Mr. Cooke said 
1at the Assembly had an indisputable right to call 
pon thc> two countries to endeavour to resolve the 
ispute by negotiations, which was the first of the 
1eans li~ted in Article 33 of the Charter. An example 
f what could be achieved by such means had recently 
een provided in the question of Trieste. 

8. Argentina would vote in favour of an appeal to 
hat effect to the two countries. 

9. Mr. I'RANCO Y FRANCO (Dominican Re
·ublic), laying stress upon the feelings of friendship 
f his country towards both the Netherlands and In
onesia. stated that there was no doubt that the ques
[on at issue was closely linked with the scope of the 
elevant articles of the Charter of transfer of sover
ignty. 

0. Summing up the attitudes of the two parties, he 
•ointed out that the question of the competence of 
he General Assembly was linked to the substance of 
he problem and that all depended upon what the As
embly was asked to do. The proper body to make a 
lecision on the interpretation of the Charter of transfer 
vould be the International Court of Justice, in view 
1f the fact that the parties disagreed completely with 
egard to the legal scope of that document. Apart from 
he fact that the Assembly was not and could not be 

legal tribunal. it would be unwise to call upon it to 
ry to resolve a complex problem in which each side 
.tood upon its own interpretation of the Charter of 
ransfer. Mr. Franco y Franco therefore shared the 
•cw of the representative of Mexico; who h2d sug
~ested (731st meeting) the possibility of the A.:;sembly 
·xhorting the parties, without in any way prejudic
ng their respective positions, to endeavour by con
·iliatory and friendly means to find a solution, in 
·onformity with the spirit of the Charter of the United 
\T ations, which would greatly contribute to the progress 
md welfare of the native population of New Guinea. 

; 1. Turning- to the substance of the matter under 
liscussion, ML Franco y Franco said that it was 
Jbvious that the word "complete", in article 1 of the 
::'harter of transfer, qualified "sovereignty", and not 
he territory being transferred. Article 2 of that charter 

Printed in Canada 

confirmed that interpretation by providing for the ex
clusion of New Guinea in effecting the tram fer of 
sovereignty. On the basis of the documents available, 
it was clear that the transfer of sovereignty of the 
residency of New Guinea had not been decided upon 
either in the Charter of transfer or subsequently; that 
the status quo maintained under that charter meant 
that the residency remained under the Nether lands 
Government as limited and defined in that charter; and 
that mutual consent was required to modify the situa
tion agreed to by the parties. 

52. The difficulties that had faced the parties when 
the question of New Guinea had thus been referred to 
in the drafting of the Charter of transfer had ap
parently stemmed from differences in conditions and 
circunstances between the residency of New Guinea and 
the rest of T ndonesia which. while they had not wholly 
precluded the establishment of a single State, had 
nevertheless made it very difficult and very complicated 
to include New Guinea until the population d that 
territory was at least attracted by or interested in the 
idea of unity. 

53. The fact that the negotiations provided for under 
article 2 of the Charter of transfer had proved un
successful was not surprising. since such a result always 
ensued when the parties to negotiation had diametri
cally opposed views and were determined to maintain 
them. The delegation of the Dominican Republic con
~idered that the matter was basically, and perhap~ 
exclusively, juridical, not only from the standpoint of 
the positions of the parties. but also because of the 
circumstances and reasons which might have led the 
parties to draw up the Charter of transfer. including 
article 2. That did not mean that the Dominican 
delegation overlooked or was unaware of the political 
aspects of the matter. 

54. However, Mr. Franco y Franco believed that the 
General Assembly was not competent to decide a prob
lem which, because of the position taken by the parties, 
required for the time being a primarily juridical 
solution. The General Assembly, as the centre for 
harmonizing the development. of international con
ciliation, must assume its essential mission. which was 
not to deepen the differences separating the parties. 
hut to exhort them to find some solution which would 
take into account thc welfare and progress of the 
population of New Guinea, the essential point. 

SS. Ba~ically. it wa~ the will of the people of ~cw 
c;uinea which could and must finally settle the deltcate 
que"tion under discussion, and it was consequently 
necessarv to han' firm guarantees that that people was 
able to ~xercise its right of self-determination. 

The meeting rose at 12.55 p.m. 

A-41889-March 1955-1,950 


